
71                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                  (JUNE 4) (Week 23 of 2024) 

                                     
                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                     
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark E. Nelson         Keith W. Radig        Jeremy J. Taylor        Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held June 4, 2024, at 
4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

 
3:00 p.m.      Joint closed session with the LEC Authority {Iowa Code Section 21.5 (1) (c)} First Floor   
                      Boardroom        
                           
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                    1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                  Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

Items 2 through 6 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                    2.  Approval of the minutes of the May 28, 2024 meeting 

 

                    3.  Approval of claims  

 

                    4.  County Treasurer – Tina Bertrand 

                         a.  Approval of resolution for abatement of taxes for the State of Iowa  

                         b.  Approve property tax refund request for parcel #894721457019 in the amount of $783.00 

                         c.  Approve property tax refund request for parcel #894825132002 in the amount of $255.00 

                         d.  Approve property tax refund request for parcel #864426462003 in the amount of $421.00 

https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

                         e.  Approve property tax refund request for parcel #894711256004 in the amount of $1881.00 

 

                    5.  Deputy Commissioner of Elections – Steve Hofmeyer 

                         Receive the appointment of Keith Jackson to fill the council position vacated by Alex Rabbass,   
                         for the City of Cushing. 
 
                    6.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 
                         Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions                         
 

 End Consent Agenda 

 

4:35 p.m.    7.  Board Administration – Heather VanSickle 

(Set time)         a.  Public hearing and sale of property parcel #894726127004 & #894726127005          Action 

                             (aka 3314 14th   

                              Street & 3315 13th Street) 

4:37 p.m.         b.  Public hearing and sale of property parcel #894726126007 & #894726126004          Action 

(Set time)              (aka 3273 13th Street & 3274 14th Street) 

 

                   8.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 

                        a.  Receive the final report and the Zoning Commission’s recommendation                      Action 

                             from their 5/29/24 meeting to approve the final plat of Thompson Farm 

                             Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County 

                        b.  Accept and approve Thompson Farm Addition, a minor subdivision to                         Action 

                             Woodbury County 

 

                   9.  WCICC-IT – John Malloy  

                        Upcoming county employee portal update                                                                  Information 

 

                 10.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                        a.  Approval of resolution for changing farm to market extensions within the                     Action 

                             town of Pierson 

                        b.  Approval of plans for project number L-B(J178)—73-97                                               Action 

 

                 11.  Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

                        Approval of letter of support for Westland Property Management Development               Action 

                        LLC application for the Iowa Workforce Housing Tax Credits 

 

                 12.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                Information 

    

                 13.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                        Information  

  

                 14.  Board Concerns                                                                                                         Information     

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Subject to Additions/Deletions 

 
 
 
 
 



 
CALENDAR OF EVENTS        

                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
                                                          
MON., JUN 3        6:00 p.m.    Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 
 
WED., JUN 5      10:00 a.m.    Loess Hills Alliance Stewardship Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa 
 
                            11:00 a.m.    Loess Hills Alliance Executive Meeting 
 
                              1:00 p.m.    Loess Hills Alliance Full Board Meeting    
 
                              4:45 p.m.    Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.                               
                            
WED., JUN 12      7:30 a.m.     SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, Hybrid    
 
                             8:05 a.m.     Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                           12:00 p.m.     District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 
                            
THU., JUN 13      5:30 p.m.     SIMPCO Annual Board of Directors Meeting & Award Ceremony, South Sioux City 
 
WED., JUN 19  12:00 p.m.      Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 
 
THU., JUN 20     4:00 p.m.      Conservation Board Meeting, Southwood Conservation Area  
 
                           4:30 p.m.      Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   
 
FRI., JUN 21     12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave. 
 
MON., JUN 24    6:00 p.m.      Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom             
                                                           
WED., JUN 26     2:30 p.m.     Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
THU., JUN 27    11:15 a.m.     Western Iowa Community Improvement Regional Housing Trust Fund, 6401 Gordon Drive 
 
FRI., JUN 28       9:00 a.m.      Hungry Canyons Alliance Meeting, Community Building in Charter Oak, Iowa 
 
MON., JUL 1       6:00 p.m.     Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 
 
WED., JUL 3       4:45 p.m.     Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office,1211 Tri-View Ave.    
                                
                             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                              
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



MAY 28, 2024, TWENTY‐SECOND MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, May 21, 2024, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Nelson, Ung, Bittinger 
II, Taylor, and Radig.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, Human 
Resources Director, Dennis Butler, Budget and Finance Director, and Patrick Gill, Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1.   Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the agenda for May 28, 2024.  Carried 5‐0.  Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Taylor second by to Ung approve the following items by consent: 
 
2.   To approve minutes of the May 21, 2024 meeting.  Copy filed. 
   
3.   To approve the claims totaling $390,894.10.  Copy filed. 
 
4a.  To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a resolution approving petition for suspension of taxes through 

the redemption process for Veo Ceola Rolfes, 4428 Tyler St., parcel #894711206003.   
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,749  

RESOLUTION APPROVING PETITION FOR SUSPENSION  
OF TAXES THROUGH THE REDEMPTION PROCESS 

 
WHEREAS, Veo Ceola Rolfes is a titleholder of property located at 4428 Tyler St., Sioux City, Iowa, Woodbury County, 
Iowa, and legally described as follows: 
 
Parcel #894711206003 
 
LEEDS LOTS 4‐6 INCL BLOCK 27 
 
WHEREAS, Veo  Ceola Rolfes, is a titleholder of the aforementioned property has petitioned the Board of Supervisors 
for a suspension of taxes pursuant to the 2017 Iowa Code Section 447.9(3) and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors recognizes from documents provided that the petitioner is unable to provide to 
the public revenue; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby directs the County 
Auditor to redeem this property Parcel #894711206003 owned by the petitioner from the holder of a certificate of 
purchase  of  the  amount  necessary  to  redeem  under  section  447.9,  and  hereby  directs  the Woodbury  County 
Treasurer to so record the approval of this tax suspension for this parcel. 
 
SO RESOLVED this 28th day of May 2024. 

  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
  Copy filed. 
 
4b.  To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a resolution for a tax suspension for Victor Mendiola, 210 22nd  

St., parcel #894721154010. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,750   

RESOLUTION APPROVING PETITION FOR SUSPENSION OF TAXES 
 

WHEREAS, Victor Mendiola, as titleholder of a property located 210 22nd St., Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa, 
and legally described as follows:    

 
      



May 28, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 2 
 
 

 Parcel #894721154010 
 

CALLS SUMMIT 2ND E 50 FT LOT 1‐2 BLOCK 8 
          

WHEREAS, Victor Mendiola of the aforementioned property has petitioned the Board of Supervisors for a suspension 
of taxes pursuant to the 2017 Iowa Code section 427.9, and   
                                                              
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors recognizes from documents provided that the petitioner is unable to provide to 
the public revenue; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby grants the request for 
a  suspension of  taxes, and hereby directs  the Woodbury County Treasurer  to  so  record  the approval of  this  tax 
suspension for this property. 

 
SO RESOLVED this 28th day of May 2024. 

  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS   
  Copy filed. 

 
5.  To approve an application for a 12‐month Class C Retail Alcohol License, with Outdoor Service Sales privileges for 

Correctionville Golf Club, effective 06/02/2024 through 06/01/2025.  Copy filed. 
 
6a.  To approve the separation of Cinthia Hernandez, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 05‐26‐24. 

Separation.; the separation of Kyle Plendl, Sheriff Reserve, County Sheriff Dept., effective 02‐11‐24. Separation.; 
separation of Jerome Pierson, Sheriff Reserve, County Sheriff Dept., effective 04‐19‐24. Separation.; the 
appointment of Mackenzie Vanroekel, Summer Engineering Aide (Temp), Secondary Roads Dept., effective 05‐29‐
24, $17.50/hour. Job Vacancy Posted 2/21/24.  Not to Exceed 4 months.; the appointment of Kurtus Palsma, 
Summer Engineering Aide (Temp), Secondary Roads Dept., effective 05‐29‐24, $18.50/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted 
2/21/24.  Not to Exceed 4 months; the appointment of Blasé Sanford, Summer Engineering Aide (Temp), 
Secondary Roads Dept., effective 05‐29‐24, $17.50/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted 2/21/24.  Not to Exceed 4 months.; 
the other of Hannah Kritzer, Sheriff Intern (Temp), County Sheriff Dept., effective 05‐27‐24, $20.00/hour, 
33%=$5.00/hr.  Salary Increase,; the separation of Constance Alderson, Clerk II, County Treasurer MV Dept., 
effective 06‐28‐24.  Retirement.; and the appointment of Cole Thomas, Summer Laborer, Secondary Roads Dept., 
effective 05‐29‐24, $16.00/hour. Job Vacancy Posted 2/21/24.  Not to Exceed 4 months.  Copy filed. 

 
6b.  To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Civilian Jailer, 

County Sheriff Dept.  CWA:  $23.97/hour.; and Clerk II, County Treasurer Dept.  AFSCME:  $18.68/hour. Copy filed. 
 
6c.  To approve the request of Connie Alderson to remain on the County Health and Dental Insurances.  Copy filed. 
 
6d.  To approve the purchase of Cyber Liability Insurance for FY 24/25.  Copy filed. 
 
  Carried 5‐0. 
 
7.  Motion by Radig second by Bittinger to approve the FY 2024 Woodbury County Secondary Roads Department 

Budget Amendment #1.  Carried 5‐0.  Copy filed. 
 
8a.  Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to transfer $400,000 General Supplemental to the Self Liability Insurance Fund.  

Carried 4‐1; Taylor opposed.  Copy filed. 
 
8b.  A public hearing was held at 4:45 p.m. on Amendment #1 to the Woodbury County FY 2024 Budget.  The 

Chairperson called on anyone wishing to be heard. 
 
  Motion by Taylor second by Ung to close the public hearing.  Carried 5‐0. 
 
8c.  Motion by Nelson second by Ung to approve transfer of appropriation in the Sheriff’s FY 24 budget overtime 

transfers.  Carried 5‐0. 



May 28, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 3 
 
 
 
8d.  Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution Approval of FY 

2023/2024 Budget Amendment #1.  Carried 5‐0. 
 

APPROVAL OF FY 2023/2024 BUDGET AMENDMENT #1 
RESOLUTION #13,751 

 

WHEREAS, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors has considered the proposed FY 2023/2024 county 

budget amendment #1; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the proposed county budget was held on June 6, 2023; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE  IT RESOLVED by  the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County  that  the county 

budget  amendment  #1  for  FY  2023/2024  as  set  forth  in  the  budget  amendment  summary,  is  hereby 

adopted and that the Woodbury County Auditor is directed to file said budget and to establish accounting 

records in accordance with the attached schedules. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairperson and the County Auditor be and are hereby authorized to 

sign the approved FY 2023/2024 county budget amendment. 

Signed and dated the 28th day of May, 2024. 
  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS   
  Copy filed. 
 
9.  Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
10.   Sheila Thompson, Lawton, addressed the Board with concerns about election misconduct and asked Supervisor 

Taylor to resign and Supervisor Radig to withdraw from the Auditor’s Contest. 
   
11.  Board concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until June 4, 2024. 
   
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
 













     

     

     

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT         
                                                                             

MEMORANDUM OF PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS                                                       
                          
                                         * PERSONNEL ACTION CODE:          
DATE:  _June 4, 2024__                  A- Appointment                      R-Reclassification 

                                                                                   T - Transfer   E- End of Probation 

                                                                                        P - Promotion   S - Separation 

      D - Demotion   O – Other 

 

TO:  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

NAME 

 

DEPARTMENT 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

 

JOB TITLE 

SALARY 

REQUESTED 

 

% 

INCREASE 

 

* 

 

REMARKS 

 

 

Simoni, 

Michael 

 

 

   Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

6-10-2024 

 

 

Master Deputy 

 

     

     $38.30/hour 

 

 

10%=$3.46/hr 

 

 

R 

Per CWA: 

From Senior to 

Master Deputy. 

Anniversary 

Date 

6/21/2024. 

 

 

Tronson, 

Sterling 

 

 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

6-10-2024 

 

 

Civilian Jailer 

1st Class 

 

 

$25.95/hour 

 

 

4%=$1.00/hr 

 

 

R 

Per CWA: 

From 2nd  Class 

to 1st Class. 

Anniversary 

Date 

6/10/2024. 

 

 

Tank, Jessica 

 

 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

6-10-2024 

 

Civilian Jailer 

2nd Class 

 

 

$24.95/hour 

 

 

4%=$0.98/hr 

 

 

R 

Per CWA: 

From 3rd Class 

to 2nd Class. 

Anniversary 

Date 6/14/2024 

 

Resendiz 

Perea, 

Rosario 

 

 

 

Juvenile Detention 

 

 

6-5-2024 

 

PT Youth 

Worker - 

Female 

 

 

$21.41/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

4/11/2024. 

Entry Level 

Salary 

$21.41/hour. 

 

 

Moravek, 

Lillian 

 

 

 

Attorney’s Office 

 

 

6-5-2024 

 

 

Legal Secretary 

III 

 

 

$22.63/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

5/6/2024. 

Entry Level 

Salary 

$22.63/hour. 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

       

 

APPROVED BY BOARD DATE:          ______________________________  

 

       

 

MELISSA THOMAS, HR DIRECTOR:        ______________________________ 

           

 























WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:   

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing    Other:  Informational      Attachments    ✔

✔✔

A) Motion to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 5/29/24
meeting to approve the final plat of Thompson Farm Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury
County, Iowa.
B) Motion to accept and approve Thompson Farm Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County,
Iowa.

The Mark W. and Mary J. Thompson Joint Revocable Trust has filed for a one (1) lot minor subdivision on the property identified as
Parcel #884621200002 and referenced above. This subdivision is being completed to establish a 2.24 acre lot. This minor
subdivision proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal legals section on May 14, 2024 The neighbors within 1000
FT have been duly notified via a May 10, 2024 letter about the May 29, 2024 Zoning Commission public hearing. Appropriate
stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment.
The Woodbury County Engineer found the proposal in compliance with Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lot(s)
have adequate access. This property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and the portion to be
subdivided is not located in the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) – Zone X. The City of Bronson waived their extraterritorial
review authority with the approval of Resolution No. 8-2024. Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in
the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets appropriate criteria for approval. Staff recommends approval. The
Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted to recommend the acceptance and approval of the Thompson Farm Addition final plat
to the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors following their public hearing on May 29, 2024.

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 884621200002
Township/Range: T88N R46W (Floyd)
Section: 21
Quarter: NW ¼ NE ¼
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Area to be subdivided not in the floodplain (Zone X)

The Supervisors will receive the Woodbury County Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Commission's recommendation and final
staff report on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Board may table the matter
with the consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat.

Daniel J. Priestley

6/4/245/30/24



FINANCIAL IMPACT:

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes ☐☐ No       ☐☐

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

A) Motion to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 5/29/24
meeting to approve the final plat of Thompson Farm Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County,
Iowa.

B) Motion to accept and approve Thompson Farm Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa.

Receive the final report and P&Z Commission's recommendation from their 5/29/24 meeting.

Approve the final plat and authorize the Chairman to sign the resolution.

0



1 

 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING 
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101 

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax) 

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                         Dawn Norton – Senor Clerk 
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov 

 

 

FINAL REPORT – MAY 30, 2024 
THOMPSON FARM ADDITION – MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL 

 

APPLICATION DETAILS 
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Mark W. & Mary J. Thompson 

Joint Revocable Trust 

Application Type: Minor Subdivision 

Name of Subdivision: Thompson Farm Addition 

Application Date: April 22, 2024 

Number of Lots: One (1) 

Total Acres: 2.24 

Extraterritorial Review: Bronson 

Legal Notice Date: May 14, 2024 

Neighbor(s) Notice Date: May 10, 2024 

Stakeholder(s) Notice Date: April 29, 2024 

Zoning Commission Public 
Hearing Date: 

May 29, 2024 

Board of Supervisors 
Agenda Date: 

TBD 

Attorney: Robert Rehan, 712-255-1085 

Surveyor: Alan Fagan, 712-539-1471 
 

PROPERTY DETAILS 
Parcel(s): 884621200002 

Township/Range: T88N R46W (Floyd) 

Section: 21 

Quarter: NW ¼ NE ¼  

Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 

Floodplain: Area to be subdivided not in the 
floodplain (Zone X) 

Property Address: N/A 
 

CONTENTS 
Summary, Aerial Map, Plat Excerpt, 
Recommendation, & Suggested Motion 
 

 

Legal Notification 
 

 

Neighbor(s) Notification 
 

 

Stakeholder(s) Comments 
 

 

Review Criteria / Applicant Responses 
 

 

Application 
 

 

Supporting Documentation 
 

 

 

 

SUMMARY 
The Mark W. and Mary J. Thompson Joint Revocable Trust has filed for a one (1) lot minor subdivision on the property identified as Parcel #884621200002 and 
referenced above.  This subdivision is being completed to establish a 2.24 acre lot.  This minor subdivision proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City 
Journal legals section on May 14, 2024  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a May 10, 2024 letter about the May 29, 2024 Zoning Commission 
public hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment.  The 
Woodbury County Engineer found the proposal in compliance with Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lot(s) have adequate access.  This property is 
located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and the portion to be subdivided is not located in the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) – Zone X.  The 
City of Bronson waived their extraterritorial review authority with the approval of Resolution No. 8-2024.  Based on the information received and the requirements set 
forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets appropriate criteria for approval.  Staff recommends approval.  The Woodbury County Zoning 
Commission voted 4-0 to recommend the acceptance and approval of the Thompson Farm Addition at their special meeting held on May 29, 2024. 

 

AERIAL MAP PLAT EXCEPRT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

 
 



3 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 

 



5 

 

 
 



6 

 

APPLICATION 

 
 



0 50 100

RESOLUTION AND CERTIFICATE OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY
ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
I, CHRIS ZELLMER ZANT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE WOODBURY 
COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA AND DO FURTHER CERTIFY THAT SAID 
COMMISSION HAS HERETOFORE TAKEN UNDER ADVISEMENT THE PLAT OF THOMPSON FARM 
ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, AND THAT SAID WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA DID ON THE ________DAY OF ____________________, 2024 APPROVE 
THE SAME AND DOES FURTHER HEREBY RECOMMEND TO THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, THE ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT.

DATED THIS   ________ DAY OF ___________________, 2024.

____________________________________________________
CHRIS ZELLMER ZANT
CHAIRMAN
WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

AUDITOR AND RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE OF RECORDING
STATE OF IOWA     :
                    :  SS
COUNTY OF WOODBURY:

DOCKET NO: ________________________________

FILED FOR RECORD, THIS _______DAY OF____________________________, 202___ AT ______ 

O'CLOCK ___.M. RECORDED IN PLAT ENVELOPE _________________________, INDEXED AND 

DELIVERED TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA.

DATED _____________________________                          

____________________________________
PATRICK F. GILL
AUDITOR AND RECORDER
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
BY:  DIANE SWOBODA PETERSON, DEPUTY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

MARK W. THOMPSON AND MARY J. THOMPSON, TRUSTEES OF THE JOINT REVOCABLE TRUST OF MARK W. THOMPSON 
AND MARY J. THOMPSON, TRUSTEES OF THE JOINT REVOCABLE TRUST OF MARK W. THOMPSON AND MARY J. 
THOMPSON, DATED SEPTEMBER 14, 2021, THE OWNERS OF THE REAL ESTATE DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED 
SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE, HAVE IN THE PURSUANCE OF LAW, CAUSED SAID DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE TO BE 
SURVEYED, STAKED AND PLATTED INTO LOTS AND STREETS, AS IS PARTICULARLY SHOWN AND SET FORTH IN THE 
ATTACHED PLAT AND SAID CERTIFICATE OF ALAN L. FAGAN, A LICENSED SURVEYOR WHO SURVEYED AND PLATTED 
THE REAL ESTATE TO BE KNOWN AS THOMPSON FARM ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, AND THAT THE SAME IS 
PREPARED WITH THE FREE CONSENT AND ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIRES AS OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS THEREOF.

EXECUTED AT _______________________, IOWA, THE ___ DAY OF ________________, 2024.

___________________________________
MARK W. THOMPSON
TRUSTEE

___________________________________
MARY J. THOMPSON
TRUSTEE

STATE OF IOWA  :
                 :SS
WOODBURY COUNTY:

ON THIS _____ DAY OF ___________________, 2024, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND 
FOR THE STATE OF IOWA, PERSONALLY APPEARED MARK W. THOMPSON AND MARY J. THOMPSON, TRUSTEES OF THE 
JOINT REVOCABLE TRUST OF MARK W. THOMPSON AND MARY J. THOMPSON, DATED SEPTEMBER 14, 2021, TO ME 
KNOWN TO BE THE PERSONS NAMED IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTURMENT, AND ACKNOWLEDGED THAT 
THEY EXECUTED THE SAME AS THEIR VOLUNTARY ACT AND DEED.

_______________________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID STATE
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: _____________________________

SCALE 1"=100'

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
THOMPSON FARM ADDITION

A MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT 
OF

21-88-46 THOMPSON FARM
2024 (28)

N 71
°33'

54" 
E

316.
23'

BLO
CK 

WAL
L

300.00'

31
8.
00
'

S 
0°
00
'0
0"
 W

470.4' RECORD - 469.42' MEASURED

N.W. CORNER
N.W.1/4-N.E.1/4
SEC. 21-88-46
FOUND 5/8"
REBAR

N 90°00'00" E

10
0.
00
'

S 
50
°2
3'
14
" 
W

44
1.
69
'

2.24 ACRES INCLUD. CO. R.O.W.
2.02 ACRES EXCLUD. CO. R.O.W.

N 
24
°3
8'
30
" 
E

23
9.
84
'

11
9.
92
'

N 
16
°1
0'
59
" 
E

28
9.
63
'

SHED

350.00'
N 90°00'00" E

50.00'

CL450.00'
N 90°00'00" E

10
9.
0'

400.00'

190TH ST.

WARRANTY DEED
DOCUMENT NO. 2022-08415

PAUL E. CORRIE
VIRGINIA A. CORRIE

50.0'

11
9.
92
'

S 
37
°1
9'
29
" 
W

285.00'
N 90°00'00" E

300.14'

20
6.
91
'

COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY

POINT OF
BEGINNING

NORTH LINE
N.E.1/4
SEC. 21-88-46

LOT 1

33
'

33
'

50.00'S 0°00'00" W

1435.72'

N.E. CORNER
N.E.1/4
SEC. 21-88-46
FOUND 5/8"
REBAR

S 90°00'00" W

COUNTY ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATE
I, MARK NAHRA, P.E. COUNTY ENGINEER FOR WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DO HEREBY CERTIFY 
THAT THE BOUNDARY LINES OF THE PLAT AND LOTS THEREIN WERE MATHEMATICALLY CHECKED 
AND CONFORM WITH THE REQUIREMENTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE, 
THAT ALL DIMENSIONS BOTH LINEAL AND ANGULAR NECESSARY FOR THE LOCATION OF LOTS, 
TRACTS, STREETS, ALLEYS AND EASEMENTS ARE SHOWN.

____________________________________
MARK NAHRA, P.E.
COUNTY ENGINEER
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

MARK W. THOMPSON

MARK W. THOMPSON AND MARY J. THOMPSON,
AS TRUSTEES OF THE JOINT REVOCABLE TRUST
OF MARK W. THOMPSON & MARY J. THOMPSON

PART OF THE N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4

468821
WOODBURY

DATE OF SURVEY:  DECEMBER 2023

SURVEYOR:  ALAN L. FAGAN      712 539-1471
MAIL TO:  AL FAGAN LAND SURVEYING, P.C.
                    P.O. BOX 858 - MERRILL, IA 51038

SECTION(S):                          T.              N.,                     R.              W.

ALIQUOT PART:
CITY:
SUBDIVISION:
BLOCK(S):
LOT(S):
PROPRIETOR(S):

REQUESTED BY:

COUNTY:

INDEX LEGEND

TREASURER'S CERTIFICATE OF TAXES AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
I, TINA BERTRAND, TREASURER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE 
LAND DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED AND FOREGOING SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE IS FREE FROM 
CERTIFIED TAXES AND CERTIFIED SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.

DATED__________________________________

_________________________________________
TINA BERTRAND
TREASURER,
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

I, ALAN L. FAGAN, A DULY LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE LAWS OF THE STATE 
OF IOWA, HOLDING CERTIFICATE NO. 15082, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THOMPSON 
FARM ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, IS A TRUE REPRESENTATION OF A SURVEY MADE BY ME OR UNDER 
MY DIRECT SUPERVISION, AND THAT THE SAME IS LOCATED UPON AND COMPRISES THE WHOLE OF THE 
ATTACHED DESCRIBED PROPERTY.

I DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE CONTAINED IN SAID DESCRIPTION THE LOTS AND STREETS DESCRIBED 
IN THE ADDITION PLATTED; THAT THE SAME ARE OF THE DIMENSIONS, NUMBERS, NAMES AND LOCATIONS AS 
SHOWN ON SAID PLAT AND THAT IRON STAKES WERE DRIVEN AT EACH CORNER OF EVERY LOT AND TRACT 
EXCEPT AS NOTED ON SAID PLAT.

DATED AT SIOUX CITY, IOWA _________________________, 2024.

____________________________________
ALAN L. FAGAN
IOWA NO. 15082

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

NO. 15082

AI O W

DEDICATION

ALAN L.
FAGAN

A

E

P
R
O
F

S
S

I
NO

L L A N D

V
E
Y
O
R

S U R

PART OF THE N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 88 NORTH, RANGE 46 WEST 
OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
COMMENCING AT THE N.E. CORNER OF SAID N.E.1/4; THENCE S.90°00'00"W. ALONG THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID N.E.1/4 FOR 1435.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S.0°00'00"W. 
FOR 50.00 FEET; THENCE S.37°19'29"W. FOR 206.91 FEET; THENCE S.50°23'14"W. FOR 
441.69 FEET; THENCE N.16°10'59"E. FOR 289.63 FEET TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF A 
PARCEL DESCRIBED ON A WARRANTY DEED RECORDED ON DOCUMENT NUMBER: 2022-08415 IN THE 
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE; THENCE N.24°38'30"E. ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF 
SAID PARCEL FOR 239.84 FEET TO THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID PARCEL AND THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID N.E.1/4; THENCE N.90°00'00"E. ALONG SAID NORTH LINE FOR 285.00 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 2.24 ACRES INCLUDING COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY AND 
2.02 ACRES EXCLUDING SAID RIGHT OF WAY.  SUBJECT TO AND TOGETHER WITH ANY AND ALL 
EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS.

NOTE:  THE NORTH LINE OF SAID N.E.1/4 IS ASSUMED TO BEAR N.90°00'00"E.

VICINITY SKETCH
NO SCALE

SEC. 28-88-46

200TH ST.HOME RD.

D-38

BRONSON

SURVEYOR'S DESCRIPTON:

THERE MAY BE EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS 
AND COVENANTS NOT SHOWN THAT AFFECT 
LOT 1, THOMPSON FARM ADDITION

NOTE

THOMPSON
FARM ADD.

SEC. 21-88-46

190TH ST.

EA
ST
LA
ND
 A
VE
.

DE
LA
WA
RE
 A
VE
.

= 1/2" REBAR FOUND

= 1/2" YELLOW CAPPED
  REBAR #15082 SET

= 10" SPIKE SET

MONUMENTS

FINAL PLAT

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY ASSESSOR
I, JULIE CONOLLY, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ON THE ______ DAY OF _____________________, 
202__, A COPY OF THIS PLAT WAS FILED IN THE WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR'S OFFICE.

DATED ________________________________

________________________________________
JULIE CONOLLY
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR

AUDITOR'S APPROVAL OF SUBDIVISION NAME OR TITLE
THE COUNTY AUDITOR HEREBY ACCEPTS AND APPROVES THE NAME OF THOMPSON FARM ADDITION, 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, FOR USE IN WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA AS REQUIRED BY IOWA CODE 
SECTION 354.6(2).

DATED __________________________, 2024.

______________________________
PATRICK F. GILL
WOODBURY COUNTY AUDITOR
BY:  DIANE SWOBODA PETERSON, DEPUTY

TITLE OPINION

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' RESOLUTION
RESOLUTION NO. _______________________
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THOMPSON FARM ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA.

WHEREAS, THE OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS DID ON THE ____ DAY OF _________________,
2024, FILE WITH THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION A CERTAIN PLAT DESIGNATED AS 
THOMPSON FARM ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY,  IOWA; AND

WHEREAS, IT APPEARS THAT SAID PLAT CONFORMS WITH ALL OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE CODE OF 
THE STATE OF IOWA AND ORDINANCES OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, WITH REFERENCE TO THE FILING 
OF SAME; AND 

WHEREAS, THE ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS RECOMMENDED THE ACCEPTANCE 
AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT; AND

WHEREAS, THE COUNTY ENGINEER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS RECOMMENDED THE ACCEPTANCE 
AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT.

NOW THEREFORE, BE, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, THAT THE PLAT OF THOMPSON FARM ADDITION, 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BE, AND THE SAME IS HEREBY ACCEPTED AND APPROVED, AND THE 
CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, 
STATE OF IOWA, ARE HEREBY DIRECTED TO FURNISH TO THE OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS A CERTIFIED 
COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _______ DAY OF __________________________________, 2024.

__________________________________
MATTHEW UNG
CHAIRMAN
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

ATTEST: __________________________
        PATRICK F. GILL
        SECRETARY

TO:	COUNTY AUDITOR AND RECORDER
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

Dear Sir:

We have this date examined a complete abstract of title, pursuant to Iowa Code 
Section 354.11(3), to the property described in the Surveyor's Certificate on 
the Plat of Thompson Farm Addition, Woodbury County, Iowa, described more 
particularly as:   

Part of the N.W. ¼ of the N.E. ¼ of Section 21, Township 88 North, Range 46 West 
of the 5th Principal Meridian, Woodbury County, Iowa, described as follows:  
Commencing at the N.E. corner of said N.E. ¼; thence S. 90º00'00" W. along the 
North Line of said N.E. ¼ for 1,435.72 feet to the point of beginning; thence S. 
00º00'00" W. for 50.00 feet; thence S. 37º19'29" W. for 206.91 feet; thence S. 
50º23'14" W. for 441.69 feet; thence N. 16º10'59" E. for 289.63 feet to the 
Southeasterly corner of a parcel described on a Warranty Deed recorded on 
Document Number: 2022-08415 in the Woodbury County Recorder's Office; thence N. 
24º38'30" E. along the Easterly Line of said parcel for 239.84 feet to the 
Northeasterly corner of said parcel and the North Line of said N.E. ¼; thence N. 
90º00'00" E. along said North Line for 285.00 feet to the point of beginning. 
Containing 2.24 acres including County right of way and 2.02 acres excluding 
said right of way.

Said abstract of title was last certified by Engleson Abstract Co., Inc. dated 
___________________, 2024 at 8:59 o'clock a.m. and from said abstract find good 
and merchantable title to said premises vested in Mark W. Thompson and Mary J. 
Thompson, as Trustees of the Joint Revocable Trust of Mark W. Thompson and Mary 
J. Thompson, dated September 14, 2021, the proprietors, free and clear of all 
mortgages, liens and other encumbrances, except the following:

	a)  Easement shown under a Real Estate Contract attached to an Application for 
Authority to Sell Real Estate filed February 26, 2008 in the Estate of Rena E. 
Kenney, No. ESPR050737 (Seller) and Mark W. Thompson and Mary J. Thompson 
(Buyers) allowing Joan Fouts Mosier the right to use the water from a well 
located on the property being purchased by Thompson and allowing Fouts Mosier to 
use, repair, maintain or replace the well.  

	b)  Easement filed December 19, 1939 in Book 146 Misc., Page 25 conveyed to 
Woodbury County Rural Electric Co-Operative Association, its successors and 
assigns in connection with the operation of an electric line.  

	c)  Deed filed February 20, 1946 in Book 105, Page 76 which reserves a rail road 
right of way over and across the NE ¼ of 21-88-46.  

	d)  Zoning Regulations filed March 5, 1971 in Book 1263 at Pages 9 to 78;

	e)  Resolution Nos. 6332 and 6333 filed May 12, 1977 on Roll 62 at Images 2118 
and 2120;
	 
     f)  Resolution No. 10,456 filed August 29, 2008 on Roll 699, Image 7313.

	g)  Ordinance No. 61 filed February 28, 2022 as Inst. #2022-02525. 

	h)  Ordinance No. 74 filed August 18, 2023 as Inst. #2023-07899.  

	i)  Matters reflected on the final plat of Thompson Farm Addition, Woodbury 
County, Iowa. 

	j)  All certified real estate taxes and special assessments due and payable have 
been paid.  Real estate taxes and special assessments not certified are a lien 
in an undetermined amount. 

	Dated:  _________________, 2024.  

_______________________________
ROBERT J. REHAN
Attorney at Law
 

FRONT YARD - 100'

SIDE YARD - 20'
ACCESSORY STRUCTURE - 10'

REAR YARD - 50'
ACCESSORY STRUCTURE - 10'

ALAN L. FAGAN

MARK W. THOMPSON AND MARY J. THOMPSON, AS 
TRUSTEES OF THE JOINT REVOCABLE TRUST OF 
MARK W. THOMPSON AND MARY J. THOMPSON

SETBACKS

SURVEYOR

OWNERS/SUBDIVIDERS

AL FAGAN
LAND SURVEYING, P.C.

P.O. BOX 858
MERRILL, IA 51038

712 539-1471



8 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING STAFF – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE) 

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, Planning and Zoning staff: 

 shall review a subdivision application for completeness and for approval of a final plat by ensuring it is submitted in 
accordance with the standards for a subdivision plat per Iowa Code. 

 Staff reviewed the subdivision application, deemed it complete, and verified the final plat’s conformance to the County’s Zoning 
Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance, and the Code of Iowa, all as required by law. 

 shall accept payment of applicable fees, and distribute copies of the final plat to the Planning & Zoning Commission, the 
appropriate county departments and public utilities; and 

 Staff received the application fee and the account is paid-in-full.  Staff also distributed copies of the application, final plat, and other 
materials to all relevant stakeholders as required. 

 shall coordinate with the County Engineer who shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the engineering design 
standards of these regulations and to verify accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data; and 

 Staff have received written confirmation that the County Engineer has reviewed and determined that te final plat conforms to the 
engineering and design standards of these regulations, and he has verified the accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data. 

 shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the design standards of these regulations and with the required form 
of the plat and related documents; and 

 Staff verified that the final plat conforms to the design standards of these regulations, as well as the required form of the final plat. 

 

 shall assure conformance with the goals and objectives of the County’s General Plan, the CED staff may make 
recommendations for conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties. 

 Staff attest to the final plat conforming to the goals and objectives of the county plan.  Staff recommends approval of the final plat. 

 

                 

 
ZONING COMMISSION – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE) 

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, the Planning and Zoning Commission: 

 shall conduct a public hearing on a final plat for a minor subdivision. Notice of the date, time and location of the hearing will be 
mailed to the owners of all property within 1,000 feet for the subject property not less than four nor more than twenty days prior 
to the date of the hearing; and 

 Staff have ensured that the legal requirements have been met for publicly noticing this public hearing, all as required by law. Staff have 
also ensured the notice requirement for adjacent landowners within 1000 FT have also been met.  

 shall review the final plat and the staff reports and other information presented to determine whether the plat conforms to the 
ordinances, general plan and other policies of the county; and 

 Staff have compiled, reviewed, and analyzed all relevant materials to determine whether the plat conforms to the ordinances, general 
plan, and other policies of the County, or not. Staff provided this information in a “Staff Report” format and made them available to the 
Commission well in advance of the required public hearing. The Commission also held a public hearing to review, analyze, and discuss 
the final plat and other relevant information. 

 may recommend specific conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties; and 

 Staff does not recommend any specific conditions for this final plat. However, specific conditions (if any) may be recommended by the 
Commission. 

 shall forward a report of its finding and a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. The recommendation shall be in the 
form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat materials. A copy of the report and the resolution shall also be 
forwarded to the property owner, the subdivider and the land surveyor for the subdivision. 

 During its required public hearing on the final plat, the Board of Supervisors will receive the final staff report and the Commission's 
recommendation on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Supervisors may table the matter 
with the consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat. Staff will coordinate 
with the subdivider and land surveyor to ensure all copies and recordings are submitted and received, all as required by law.  

 



9 

 

EXTRATERRITORAL REVIEW 

 
 



10 

 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION – MAY 14, 2024 – Sioux City Journal 

 



11 

 

 
 



12 

 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION 

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing: 

7 

Notification Letter Date: May 10, 2024 

Public Hearing Board: Zoning Commission 

Public Hearing Date: May 29, 2024 

Phone Inquiries: 0 

Written Inquiries: 0 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.  
 

 

 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS 
Trustee of the Joint Revocable 
Trust of Mark W. Thompson & 
Mary J. Thompson 

1995 Eastland Ave. Bronson IA 51007-0106 None 

Paul E. Corrie and Virginia A. 
Corrie 

2060 190th Street Bronson IA 51007 None 

Raymond Haafke 2108 190th Street Bronson IA 51007-8011 None 

Trustees of the Roland E. McNear 
& Lynda M. McNear Revocable 
Living Trust 

1974 Delaware Ave. Bronson IA 51007 None 

Scott E. Schroeder & Michelle M. 
Schroeder 

111 Hill Street Bronson IA 51007 None 

Corrie R. Schroeder Life Estate 
reserved by Scott E. Schroeder 
and Michelle M. Schroeder 

2067 190th Street Bronson IA 51007 None 

Linda L. Aakhus PO Box 46 Lawton IA 51030-0046 None 
 

 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: None 

CITY OF LAWTON: None 

FIBERCOMM: None 

FLOYD TOWNSHIP: None 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): None 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): None 

LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: None 

LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: None 

LONGLINES: None 

LUMEN: None 

MAGELLAN PIPELINE: None 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following proposed minor subdivision for MEC electric and we have no 
conflicts. Have a great week! – Casey Meinen, 4/30/24. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No conflicts for MEC “Gas”. – Tyler Ahlquist, 4/30/24. 

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): None 

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: None 

NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 5/8/24. 

NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments from NuStar. – Matt McGee, 4/30/24. 

SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: None 

WIATEL: None 

WINNEBAGO TRIBE: None 

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: None 

WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: None 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: None 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: None 

WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: REVIEW MEMO BELOW 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: Looks ok to me. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 4/29/24. 



13 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC): 

None 

WOODBURY COUNTY SHERIFF: None 

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 4/23/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: All certified taxes are paid in full on this parcel.  We do not have any other comments or 
concerns. – Tina Bertrand, 4/29/24. 

 

 

 



14 

 

PRELIMINARY DRAWING 

 
 



15 

 

TITLE OPINION 

 



16 

 

 
 

 



17 

 

PARCEL REPORT(S) 

 
 



18 

 

ZONING MAP 

 
 



19 

 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP 

 



20 

 

DRAFT - SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP 

 
 

 

BASE FLOOD ELEVATION DATA 
Base Flood Elevation Data (BFE) is not required as the area requested to be subdivided is less than five (5) acres. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



21 

 

ELEVATION MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



22 

 

SOIL MAP(S) 

 



23 

 

SOIL REPORT(S) 

 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

05/28/24 06/04/24

John Malloy, WCICC-IT

Upcoming County Employee Portal Update 
 

Over a period of approximately six months, WCICC-IT worked with Neapolitan Labs (the developer of the 
County Web Site) to create and launch a City of Sioux City Employee and WCICC-IT Portal.  The City 
Employee Portal was well-received by City employees and City Leadership.  For phase two of the project, 
WCICC-IT is again working with Neapolitan Labs to create a County Employee Portal. 
 
The County Employee Portal will feature Human Resources, IT and the Auditor’s Offices.  Anticipated content 
will include, but not be limited to, HR Forms, Tyler Access, IT Help Desk information, Employee Directory, 
Facilities and FAQ.  County employees will be required to authenticate and will have Portal access from a 
default browser home-page or the County Web Site.  
 
  

Upcoming County Employee Portal Update

✔ ✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

☐Yes     ☐            No       

RECOMMENDATION:  

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

Informational

Informational 

Total cost of the project is $10,000. The $2,500 previously paid for the WCICC-IT Portal will apply, leaving a 
remaining balance of $7,500 due. 
  
The project will be paid for by WCICC-IT, using FY24 funds and will be included in the June month end 
invoice that is sent to the Board Office.  
  
  
 



Woodbury County, Iowa
Employee Portal Development Proposal

May 21, 2024

PREPARED BY

Brian McMillin
President

Neapolitan Labs LLC

PREPARED FOR

John Malloy
Chief Information Officer

WCICC-IT



Overview

Neapolitan Labs will work with Woodbury County and WCICC-IT to develop and

implement a new, access-restricted, user-friendly, mobile-optimized Employee Portal

(“Intranet”) website built for Woodbury County, Iowa, employees. The site will expand

the scope of the previously approved Intranet proposal that was focused on content

produced by the IT department.

Key Features & Functionality

Background

Neapolitan Labs has partnered with Woodbury County on website solutions since 2020 when an

Elections website was built for the Auditor’s Office. A countywide website was launched in 2023, and

since spring, Neapolitan Labs has worked with WCCIC-IT and Sioux City staff to create a new

Employee Portal, which was rolled out to City employees in early 2024.

Adjusted Branding & Design

The Woodbury County Intranet pages will be created to build upon the style of the public-facing

Woodbury County website, but with a unique color scheme to set intranet pages apart from public

pages A Login button will be integrated into the website design, making it easy for County employees

to access the Intranet content. The landing page and resources will mostly be unique for the County

audience, but content published by WCICC-IT for the Sioux City Portal will be available to share with

County employees without any dual work.

Employee Portal Homepage

Neapolitan Labs will work with Woodbury County to develop an Intranet landing page with the right

mix of employee-facing information. This includes news and announcements posted by departments

like Human Resources, links to the most-used forms, and a searchable employee directory that

mirrors what is currently set up for Sioux City employees.

Quick links on the homepage for the Employee Portal.

1



Departments

All Woodbury County departments will be eligible to produce content for the new Employee Portal.

As part of the initial build, focus will be placed on working with the Human Resources and Finance

departments to target content to employees, along with identifying relevant IT information and

documentation to include from the Sioux City Portal.

Departments will be able to create pages within their sections to explain things like the Hiring

Process, Purchasing Procedures, and/or Administrative Policies. Mint Chip Lab users will be able to

customize the placement of these sections within their lists of services and/or highlighted links.

Sections of heightened importance can be promoted on the Intranet homepage when applicable. No

duplicate editing or maintenance processes will be required. Links will be tied to icons, using the

Woodbury County department pages as an example.

Example display of Auditor department Intranet links from Pottawattamie County, Iowa.

Internal Department Content

Neapolitan Labs will meet individually with each key department (e.g. Human Resources, Finance,

Information Technology) to identify content to be added to their website sections. Information that’s

stored on shared drives or elsewhere that should be included as part of the new Intranet can be

submitted to Neapolitan Labs to import and integrate into the new internal site.

Employee Directory

Neapolitan Labs will integrate the Directory Search that is part of the Sioux City employee portal,

helping employees quickly find colleague information. Design adjustments will be made to present the

information in the Woodbury County website styles.

2



Interactive Forms

Neapolitan Labs will work with Woodbury County to convert up to 3 forms into interactive forms with

email routing based on rules defined by the Client. The Open Enrollment example referenced during

an exploratory meeting would be an example of an interactive form that could be part of the Intranet.

Citizen’s Guide & Facilities Directory

The Citizen’s Guide and Facilities Directory modules created for Sioux City can be duplicated to be

displayed on the Woodbury County Intranet, expanded to include additional County-specific items, or

updated so each item in the directories can be targeted to City, County, or both categories of

employees.

Technology

Mint Chip Lab

The website will be powered by Mint Chip Lab, the proprietary content management system

developed and maintained by Neapolitan Labs. Content created by Woodbury County departments

(e.g. Human Resources and Finance) would be managed via the County instance of Mint Chip Lab,

while any content shared between both audiences (IT, directory) would be managed in the current

Sioux City Mint Chip Lab environment.

While Neapolitan Labs retains rights to its Mint Chip Lab platform, Woodbury County is the owner of

all website content and can request exports of database information and design files at any time.

Website Access

Neapolitan Labs will work with the WCICC-IT department to establish a single sign-on via Microsoft

Azure/Entra, consistent with the access protocol for the Sioux City Intranet.

Subfolder

Neapolitan Labs will build the Portal landing page as a subfolder of the Woodbury County website

(e.g. woodburycountyiowa.gov/portal). Content that is part of departments will have URLs consistent

with current website section pages (e.g. woodburycountyiowa.gov/human_resources/benefits), but

access to these pages will be restricted to authenticated users.

Hosting

Because the Woodbury County Employee Portal will be built into the existing county website, no

additional hosting costs are required.

3



Analytics

Google Analytics will be integrated so the Client can monitor website users, visits, and page views to

the Intranet. Custom code will be added to track PDF downloads, for the most complete look at

website usage.

Costs & Timeline
The development cost for the additional design and functionality for the Woodbury County website,

and the updated Mint Chip Lab interface to support content County employees, is $10,000.

Development, Design, and Deployment

Mint Chip Lab ● Upgrade of Mint Chip Lab for
Woodbury County to allow site
content to be targeted to
authenticated employees.

● Upgrade of Mint Chip Lab for Sioux
City to allow selected content to be
cross-targeted to County
employees.

$4,000

Website Design ● Extension of the current Woodbury
County design to support a new
Login button, Employee Portal
landing page, and color scheme for
Intranet-only content.

$2,000

Website Development ● Integration to ensure secure access
for Woodbury County employees.

● Updated code to identify
Intranet-only content and serve it
on the website, and as part of
search, only for logged-in
employees.

$4,000

Ongoing Support, Starting in Year 2

Server and Services ● 2-business day response time to
Intranet-driven inquiries.

● Support for the implementation
and rollout of annual forms and
processes like Open Enrollment.

$1,000
Included for
the first year

Total First-Year Cost $10,000

4



Payment Terms & Conditions

Costs will be billed in full to accommodate WCICC-IT budget requirements. The $2,500 previously

paid for a standalone WCICC-IT Intranet will apply, leaving a $7,500 project balance to be invoiced.

Timeline

The estimated turnaround time is 12-14 weeks following approval and department meetings, with an

anticipated launch in September 2024.

Training & Services

User Training

Each department with Intranet-facing content (e.g. Human Resources) should assign one or more

employees to be trained on updates to the Mint Chip Lab platform. For departments already using

Mint Chip Lab, this can be the same employee already updating the public-facing website or another

staff member. Neapolitan Labs will provide individual department training prior to the rollout to

employees.

Super User Training

Woodbury should assign one or more super users to have access to manage and maintain the full

website. A detailed training session will be provided to cover all Mint Chip Lab modules prior to the

website launch.

Content Import

Neapolitan Labs will meet with participating departments to review any information that should be

part of the new website. All information needed for the website launch will be imported by

Neapolitan Labs to minimize County time requirements for the project. This could include forms,

policies, and more.

Recurring Training

As part of the annual support agreement, Neapolitan Labs will host webinar training with new hires

or website support staff upon request.

5
















	Insert from: "6-4-24_Thompson_Farm_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion_Report_1.pdf"
	Barker_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion_Report.pdf
	Barker Subdivision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-01
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-02
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-03



	Bookmarks from final plat-yockey 4-4-24.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model

	FINAL PLAT-SHT 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model




	Insert from: "(06-04-24) County Employee Portal - Informational.pdf"
	
	Advanced Touch Screen Control
	Custom-Programmable Virtual Buttons
	Dynamic User Interfaces
	Voice Recognition
	Streaming Video
	Rava SIP Intercom
	Sonos App
	Crestron Room Scheduling App
	Third-Party Scheduling Apps
	Zoom Rooms App
	Microsoft Teams App
	Crestron Home OS Control
	Bluetooth Beacon
	Web Browsing
	Wired and Wi-Fi Connectivity
	Power over Ethernet
	High-Speed USB Port
	Enterprise-Grade Security
	XiO Cloud Service
	Crestron One™ App Support
	Optional Mounting Accessories
	Specifications
	Models
	Available Accessories





